
 
 

Town of Discovery Bay  
Standing Internal Operations Committee Meeting  

Agenda for May 9, 2019 - Pg.1 

 

          

 
 
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE INTERNAL OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Thursday, May 9, 2019 
STANDING INTERNAL OPERATIONS COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 4:00 P.M. 
Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 

Internal Operations Committee Members 
Chair Robert Leete 

Vice-Chair Kevin Graves 
 

A. ROLL CALL 
1. Call business meeting to order 4:00 p.m. 
2. Roll Call. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
During Public Comments, the public may address the Committee on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is before 
the Committee for consideration by filling out a comment form. The public will be called to comment in the order 
the comment forms are received.  Any person wishing to speak will have 3 minutes to make their comment.  
There will be no dialog between the Committee and the commenter as the law strictly limits the ability of 
Committee members to discuss matters not on the agenda.  We ask that you refrain from personal attacks during 
comment, and that you address all comments to the Committee only.  Any clarifying questions from the 
Committee must go through the Chair.  Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the view point of the 
Committee members. 
 

C. DRAFT MINUTES TO BE APPROVED 
1. February 28, 2019 Special Internal Operations Committee DRAFT meeting minutes. 

 
D. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Discussion Regarding Approval of the Revised Bylaws. 
2. Discussion Regarding Personnel Manual Draft Revisions regarding Part Time Workers. 
3. Discussion Regarding Draft Classification Descriptions for Projects Manager and Assistant General 

Manager. 
4. Discussion Regarding the Cancellation of the Internal Operations Committee meeting on June 5, 2019. 
5. Discussion Regarding the Cancellation of the Board and Committee meetings on July 3, 2019. 

 
E. FUTURE DISCUSSION/AGENDA ITEMS 
 
F.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the next Standing Internal Operations Committee meeting at the Community Center located at 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 

“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the 
American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code § 
54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should 
contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the 
time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during normal business hours." 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
SDLF Gold-Level of Governance 

President – Bill Mayer • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Bryon Gutow 
 

 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

Town of Discovery Bay  
Standing Internal Operations Committee Special Meeting  

Minutes for February 28, 2019 - Pg.1 

 

          

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE INTERNAL OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
THURSDAY, February 28, 2019 
STANDING INTERNAL OPERATIONS COMMITTEE SPECIAL MEETING 4:00 P.M. 
Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 

Internal Operations Committee Members 
Chair Robert Leete 

Vice-Chair Kevin Graves 
 
A. ROLL CALL 

1. Call business meeting to order 4:00 p.m. – By Chair Graves. 
2. Roll Call – All Present. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
None. 
 

C. DRAFT MINUTES TO BE APPROVED 
1. November 8, 2018 Internal Operations Committee DRAFT meeting minutes – Approved. 

 
D. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Discussion Regarding Chair and Vice-Chair. 
The decision of Chair and Vice-Chair for the year 2019 will be Chair Robert Leete and Vice-Chair Kevin Graves. 
2. Discussion Regarding the Message Board Policy. 
General Manager Davies – Provided a background and details regarding the Message Board Policy; land use 
permit, building permits, installation, and types of messages.  The policy was also reviewed by the 
Communications Committee.  There was discussion regarding the different sections of the policy; purpose, the 
number of days for messages (case by case basis), length of messages, appeal fee, and mobile sign board 
advertising fee.  The consensus of the Internal Operations Committee is to recommend to the Board approval of 
the Message Board Policy. 

 
E. FUTURE DISCUSSION/AGENDA ITEMS 
 None. 
 
F.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. The meeting adjourned at 4:10 p.m. to the next Standing Internal Operations Committee meeting at the 
Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
 
 
 
//cmc – 03-01-19 
http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes 
 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
SDLF Gold-Level of Governance 

President – Bill Mayer • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Bryon Gutow 
 

 

Agenda Item C-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes


 

 
1099934-2 

1 

DISCOVERY BAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  

_____INTERNAL OPERATIONS_____ 

COMMITTEE  BYLAWS 

Revised May 9, 2019 

 

Article I: Name of Committee 

 

 The Discovery Bay Community Services District (“Discovery Bay”) Board of Directors 

(“Board”) has created the Internal Operations Committee (“Committee”).  

 

Article II: Function 

 

The Committee shall be an advisory standing committee that shall provide information 

and recommendations to the Board on matters relating to personnel policies and general 

administration of the organization. 

 

Article III: Membership 

 

 Section 1. The Committee shall be comprised of 2 Board Members, TODB Staff and 

Consultants as necessary.  

 

 Section 2. The Committee members with voting authority shall consist of: 

 

a) two Directors as appointed by the Board 

 

Section 3. Staff members selected by the General Manager shall also attend Committee 

meetings and assist the General Manager and appointed Directors with operation of the 

Committee. 

 

Article IV. Term of Office 

 

 The Board appointees to the Committee shall serve for a term of two years. 

 

Article V: Meetings 

 

 Section 1. The Committee shall establish a regular place and time for meetings of the 

Committee. Board Policy requires that all committee meetings occur at least once quarterly. 

Committee meetings for Internal Operations will be held at the Community Center, 1601 

Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, CA 94505 and will occur every even numbered 

month on the first Wednesday at 4:30 P.M. 

 

 Section 2. The Board may designate agenda items for any meetings of the Committee. 

The members of the Committee may also designate agenda items for consideration by the 

Committee that are consistent with the Committee’s designated function. 

 

 

Agenda Item D-1



 

 
1099934-2 

2 

 

Article VI: Attendance 

 

 The members of the Committee are expected to attend the meetings of the Committee on 

a regular basis.  

 

Article VII: Removal 

 

 The Board may recommend removal of any member of the Committee. A majority vote 

of the members of the Board shall be required to approve any removal of a Board Director.  

 

Article VIII: Officers and Rules 

 

 Section 1. The Committee shall elect from among its membership a Chair and Vice-

Chair. The term of office for each shall be one year. 

 

 Section 2. The Committee may adopt rules and procedures for its meetings. The 

Committee shall conduct all proceedings in conformity with Robert’s Rules of Order and the 

Brown Act. 

 

Article IX: Staff 

 

 The staff of Discovery Bay shall be available to aid the Committee in its work and a staff 

member shall serve as Secretary to the Committee.  

 

Article X: Required Training 
 

 State law (AB 1234) requires that local officials that receive compensation, salary, 

stipends, or expense reimbursements must receive training in public service ethics laws and 

principles every two years. The requirement applies not only to the governing body of a local 

agency, but also commissions, committees, boards, or other local agency bodies, whether 

permanent or temporary, decision-making or advisory. Committee members must receive 

training within one year of becoming a member, and thereafter, receive training every two years 

while still on the committee. 

 

Article XI: Amending Bylaws 

 

 Section 1. These bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of all voting 

members of the Committee. 

 

Section 2. Notice of any proposed amendment must be given to all members of the 

Committee at least one week prior to the meeting at which the amendment is proposed to occur. 
 

Agenda Item D-1



Agenda Item D-2



Agenda Item D-2



Agenda Item D-2



Agenda Item D-2



Agenda Item D-2



 

PROJECTS MANAGER – Town of Discovery Bay CSD  Page 1 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

PROJECTS MANAGER 
 

$70.00/hour – Regular Part-time 
 
FLSA Designation: Non-Exempt 
Established: July 1, 2019 
Revised:  
 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by 
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the 
job. 
 
DEPARTMENT / DIVISION Senior Management 
 
SUMMARY DESCRIPTION 
 
Receives general direction from the General Manager.  Provides highly responsible and complex 
oversight of District-Wide projects as assigned by the General Manager.  Represents the 
District’s interests by providing professional and technical oversight in the design, investigation, 
inspection, acquisition, engineering and construction of capital improvement projects and other 
specialty assignments. Coordinates assigned activities with other departments, outside agencies, 
consultants, contractors and the Town’s management team.  Writes reports of a complex and 
technical nature, maintains appropriate work records and serves as a technical resource. 
 
IDENTIFYING CHARACTERISTICS  
The Projects Manager is an “at-will” position responsible for performing oversight of the District’s 
more complex and technical projects as assigned by the General Manager. The incumbent is 
tasked with providing services that include, but is not limited to, advice, counsel, strategy, 
problem-solving and guidance.  The Projects Manager is expected to be on job sites as required, 
report to Town facilities and offices as needed, and may work from home as approved by the 
General Manager. As a regular part-time employee, all hours worked are at the approval of the 
General Manager and shall not exceed twenty-nine (29) hours per week. 
 

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 
 
REPRESENTATIVE DUTIES 
The following duties are typical for this classification. Incumbents may not perform all of the listed 
duties and/or may be required to perform additional or different duties from those set forth below 
to address business needs and changing business practices. Reasonable accommodations may 
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job functions. 
 
 
1. Relevant to assigned work, analyzes the Town’s needs and makes recommendations for 

developing and implementing programs, policies, procedures, ordinances and work practices.    
Maintains oversight and management responsibility for the design, survey, implementation, 
construction, and inspection of capital improvement projects and specialty assignments.   

2. Coordinates assigned projects with consultants, engineers, contractors, outside agencies, 
boards, commissions and affected Town departments.  Ensures compliance with regulations 
and reporting requirements. 

3. Reviews all engineering activities including design, maps, plans, surveying and inspection. 

Agenda Item D-3



 

PROJECTS MANAGER – Town of Discovery Bay CSD  Page 2 

 

4. Participates in the development and administration of budgets; directs and forecasts 
additional funds needed for staffing, equipment, materials, and supplies; monitors and 
recommends expenditures and mid-year budget adjustments. 

5. Formulates short and long-range plans for the community’s infrastructure in conjunction with 
other management personnel. 

6. Reviews parcel maps, lot line adjustments and plan submittals. 
7. Coordinates efforts among contractors, engineers, builders, operators, consultants, utility 

companies, other agencies and the general public. 
8. Reviews easement and right-of-way dedications. 
9. Reviews and/or prepares plans and specifications; prepares quantity and cost estimates; 

assists in the development of design procedures; interprets the application of design criteria; 
checks plans and specifications for accuracy of design and completeness; coordinates 
requirements for obtaining bids. 

10. Interprets, plots and supervises field survey data; reviews laboratory tests; performs field 
inspections; provides assistance in the interpretation of plans and resolution of problems 
during construction; reviews as-built plans to ensure compliance with original plans and 
specifications. 

11. As required, maintains logs and writes documents that may include Requests for Proposals 
and CEQA reports; collects all required inspection approvals; prepares staff reports for the 
Board; monitors progress on assigned projects to ensure compliance with time and cost 
schedules for completion; prepares change orders; reviews contractor’s estimates and 
prepares and reviews progress payments. 

12. Interprets codes and regulations in the preparation and implementation of projects; calculates 
valuation; coordinates plan review process with other departments and agencies. 

13. Administers and enforces Town codes and standards on projects; addresses and responds to 
citizen concerns related to work assignments. 

14. Establishes positive working relationships with representatives of community organizations, 
state/local agencies and associations, Town management and staff, and the public. 

15. Perform related duties as assigned. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS  
The following generally describes the knowledge and ability required to enter the job and/or be 
learned within a short period of time in order to successfully perform the assigned duties. 
 
Knowledge of:  
Modern principles and practices of Capital Improvement Project construction and project 
management; principles, procedures, practices, and standards of civil engineering; surveying 
methods and techniques; strength of materials and stress analysis; CEQA requirements; public 
engineering laws, ordinances, codes, specifications and plans; applicable federal, state and local 
laws, codes and regulations.  Objectives, principles, procedures, standards, practices, trends and 
innovations in the areas of civil engineering and public administration.  Experience interpreting 
Federal, State and local laws, policies, procedures, regulations, maps and funding sources.  
Federal aid project reimbursements and invoicing.  California Building Codes and the Americans 
with Disabilities Act.  Selecting, overseeing, and evaluating adequacy of consulting engineering 
services; preparing requests for proposal and CEQA documents; coordinating contract activities 
and providing technical advice and interpretation as required.  Making presentations before 
various groups, including Town Board of Directors, Committees, Commissions and professional 
and public meetings as needed.  Entrepreneurial methods and techniques used in the public 
sector.  Principles and techniques of budget development and administration.  Safe work 
practices and related regulations.  Principles of public speaking, conflict resolution and excellent 
customer service. 
 
Ability to:  
Serve as the project manager on one or more Capital Improvement Projects; prepare accurate 
plans, specifications, cost estimates, change orders and engineering reports; make accurate 
engineering computations; analyze and evaluate design drawings and specifications; prepare and 

Agenda Item D-3



 

PROJECTS MANAGER – Town of Discovery Bay CSD  Page 3 

 

manage project budgets; negotiate with citizens, property owners, contractors and other 
agencies; maintain detailed project management records and documentation; learn and apply 
established principles and practices of civil engineering; manage the work of outside consultants, 
contractors, engineers and builders; administer programs involving federal, state and local grants; 
promote and enforce safe work practices; perform mathematical calculations quickly and 
accurately; interpret, explain and apply applicable laws, codes and regulations; read, interpret 
and record data accurately; organize, prioritize and follow-up on work assignments; work 
independently and as part of a team; make sound decisions within established guidelines; 
analyze a complex issue, and develop and implement an appropriate response; follow written and 
oral directions; observe safety principles and work in a safe manner; communicate clearly and 
concisely, both orally and in writing; establish and maintain effective working relationships. 
 
EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE:  
Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills, and 
abilities is qualifying.  A typical way to obtain the required qualifications would be: 
 
Bachelor’s Degree from an accredited college or university in Civil Engineering or a closely 
related field is required. Master’s degree and/or professional accreditations are highly desirable.   
 
License:  
Valid California Certificate of Registration as a Professional Engineer in Civil Engineering 
required.  Possession of a valid California driver’s license is required. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORKING ENVIRONMENT  
The conditions herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be 
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job functions. 
 
Environment: The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those 
an employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential 
functions.  While performing the duties of this job, the employee occasionally works in outside 
weather conditions. The employee occasionally works near moving mechanical parts and in high, 
precarious places and is occasionally exposed to wet and/or humid conditions, fumes or airborne 
particles, toxic or caustic chemicals, risk of electrical shock, and vibration.  The noise level in the 
work environment is usually quiet to moderate. 
            
Physical:  Essential and marginal functions may require maintaining physical condition 
necessary for walking or standing for prolonged periods of time; operating motorized equipment 
and vehicles and using a personal computer. Position requires sitting, standing, walking on level 
and slippery surfaces, reaching, twisting, turning, kneeling, bending, stooping, squatting, 
crouching, grasping, crawling, and making repetitive hand movement in the performance of daily 
duties. The position also requires both near and far vision when inspecting work and operating 
assigned equipment and acute hearing is required when providing phone and face-to-face 
service. The need to lift, carry, pull and push tools, supplies and other equipment weighing up to 
25 pounds is also required. Additionally, the incumbent in this position works outdoors in all 
weather conditions, including wet, hot and cold. 
 
Vision: See in the normal visual range with or without correction. 
 
Hearing: Hear in the normal audio range with or without correction. 
 
Note: All employees of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District are designated 
by state law to be “Disaster Service Workers.” In the event of a declared emergency or any 
undeclared emergency or natural disaster that threatens the life, health and/or safety of the 
public, employees may be assigned to assist rescue and relief workers. Such assignments may 

Agenda Item D-3



 

PROJECTS MANAGER – Town of Discovery Bay CSD  Page 4 

 

be in locations, during hours and performing work significantly different from the employees’ 
normal work assignments and may continue through the recovery phase of the emergency. 

Agenda Item D-3



 

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER – Town of Discovery Bay CSD  Page 1 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER 
 

$46.75 – $58.38/hour, $97,232 – $121,429/year 
 
FLSA Designation: Exempt 
Established: July 2019 
Revised:  
 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by 
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the 
job. 
 
DEPARTMENT / DIVISION Senior Management 
 
SUMMARY DESCRIPTION 
Receives general direction from the General Manager.  Provides highly responsible and complex 
management and administrative assistance to the General Manager in coordinating and directing 
District-wide departmental activities and operations; assists the General Manager in executing the 
long-term vision for the District in collaboration with the Board of Directors and District managers; 
provides leadership to all District departments to enable department managers to effectively and 
efficiently maximize available resources; ensures provision of services to District customers and 
community residents; coordinates assigned activities with District departments, officials, outside 
agencies, consultants, contractors, and the public; provides highly responsible and complex 
professional assistance to the General Manager in areas of expertise; acts as General Manager 
in his/her absence; performs related work as required. 
  
IDENTIFYING CHARACTERISTICS  
The Assistant General Manager class is characterized by the responsibility to assist the General 
Manager in the overall administration and management of operations, functions and activities 
related to the District; including short- and long-term planning and policy development. The 
Assistant General Manager regularly interacts with the General Manager, Board of Directors, and 
departmental representatives in obtaining information and coordinating projects. Successful 
performance of the work requires knowledge of public policy, including the role of the elected 
Board of Directors. The incumbent is accountable for accomplishing District-wide planning and 
operational goals and objectives within general policy guidelines.  This classification is 
distinguished from the next higher classification of General Manager in that the latter has overall 
responsibility for administering the District’s operations. 
 

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 
  
REPRESENTATIVE DUTIES 
The following duties are typical for this classification. Incumbents may not perform all of the listed 
duties and/or may be required to perform additional or different duties from those set forth below 
to address business needs and changing business practices. Reasonable accommodations may 
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job functions. 
 
 
1. Assists and advises the General Manager; relieves the General Manager of administrative 

detail. 

Agenda Item D-3



 

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER – Town of Discovery Bay CSD  Page 2 

 

2. Manages the coordination and preparation of the budgets, funding mechanisms and budget 
control activities; reviews and approves funding reporting; makes recommendations to the 
General Manager on funding opportunities. 

3. Responds to resident complaints and requests for information that cannot be handled at 
lower staff levels. 

4. Coordinates assigned activities of the General Manager’s Office with internal departments 
and with outside agencies; assists in the installation of new programs and procedures.   

5. Contributes to the overall quality of the District’s service provision by developing, reviewing, 
and implementing policies and procedures to meet legal requirements and District needs; 
monitors and evaluates the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods and 
procedures. 

6. Establishes positive working relationships with representatives of community organizations, 
state/local agencies and associations, Town management and staff, and the public. 

7. Assist in the development, planning and implementation of goals and objectives related to the 
overall administrative activities and operations of the Town; recommend and administer 
policies and procedures. 

8. Makes presentations to the Board of Directors and a variety of boards and committees; 
attends and participates in professional group meetings; stays abreast of new trends and 
innovations in the management and administration of District services and programs. 

9. Investigate and prepare reports on specific requests and complaints pertaining to various 
activities. 

10. Prepares, reviews, and presents staff reports, various management and information updates, 
and reports on special projects as assigned by the General Manager 

11. Participates in the preparation, coordination, and presentation of the Town's annual budget, 
capital improvement budget, and internal fiscal control measures; participates in the 
development and presentation of financial forecasts and historical information including 
reviewing expenditures and revenues. 

12. Coordinates and participates in providing responsible staff assistance and professional 
analysis and advice to the General Manager, Town Counsel, and other Town Standing 
Committees as assigned; attends Town Board of Director meetings and other public 
meetings to assist or represent the General Manager. 

13. Supervises and/or conducts studies, surveys, and the collection of information on difficult 
operational and administrative problems; analyzes findings and prepare reports of practical 
solutions for review. 

14. Serve as the Acting General Manager in the absence of the General Manager. 
15. Perform related duties as assigned. 

 
QUALIFICATIONS  
The following generally describes the knowledge and ability required to enter the job and/or be 
learned within a short period of time in order to successfully perform the assigned duties. 
 
Knowledge of:  
Operations, services, and activities of a Community Services District.  Advanced principles and 
practices of public and local government administration.  Principles and practices of public 
personnel administration, program development and administration, fiscal and strategic planning, 
Special District finance and budget preparation and administration. Current social, political, and 
economic trends and operating characteristics/problems of Special District government.  
Government, Board, and local and state legislative processes.  Methods of analyzing, evaluating, 
and modifying administrative procedures.  Methods and techniques for goal setting and program 
evaluation.  Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.  Decision making 
techniques.  Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations.  Principles of 
effective public relations and interrelationships with community groups and agencies, private 
businesses and firms, and other levels of government.  Methods and techniques of research, 
statistical analysis, and report presentations.  Office procedures, methods, and equipment 
including computers and applicable software applications such as word processing, 
spreadsheets, and databases. 

Agenda Item D-3



 

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER – Town of Discovery Bay CSD  Page 3 

 

 
Ability to:  
Develop and implement goals, objectives, policies, procedures, work standards, and internal 
controls for the District and assigned program areas.  Work cooperatively with, provide staff 
support to, and implement the policies of the General Manager and Board of Directors. 
Prepare and administer large and complex budgets; allocate resources in a cost-effective 
manner.  Interpret, apply, explain, and ensure compliance with applicable federal, state, and local 
laws, rules, regulations, policies, and procedures.  Research, analyze, and evaluate new service 
delivery methods, procedures, and techniques.  Effectively administer special projects with 
contractual agreements and ensure compliance; effectively administer a variety of programs and 
administrative activities.  Conduct effective negotiations and effectively represent the District in 
meetings with governmental agencies, contractors, vendors, and various businesses, 
professional, regulatory, and legislative organizations.  Speak effectively in public.  Prepare clear 
and concise reports, correspondence, policies, procedures, agendas and other written materials.  
Conduct complex research projects, evaluate alternatives, make sound recommendations, and 
prepare effective technical staff reports.  Establish and maintain a variety of filing, recordkeeping, 
and tracking systems.  Organize and prioritize a variety of projects and multiple tasks in an 
effective and timely manner; organize own work, set priorities, and meet critical time deadlines.  
Operate office equipment and computer applications related to the work.  Use tact, initiative, 
prudence, and independent judgment within general policy and legal guidelines in politically 
sensitive situations.  Use English effectively to communicate in person, over the telephone, and in 
writing.  Establish, maintain, and foster positive and effective internal and external working 
relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 
 
EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE:  
Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills, and 
abilities is qualifying.  A typical way to obtain the required qualifications would be: 
 
Equivalent to graduation from an accredited four-year college or university with major coursework 
in public or business administration, finance, or a related field and seven (7) years of increasingly 
responsible professional experience in public agency administration of which five (5) years should 
be in a management capacity. 
 
License:  
Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate driver’s license may be required for some 
positions. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORKING ENVIRONMENT  
The conditions herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be 
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job functions. 
 
Environment: Employees typically work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, 
controlled temperature conditions, and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances.  
The employee interfaces with staff, management, and the public in providing customer service, 
explaining Town policies and procedures, and requesting and providing information.  
 
Depending on assignment, employees may occasionally work in the field and are occasionally 
exposed to loud noise levels, cold and/or hot temperatures, rain, vibration, dust and fumes. 
Incumbents are required to work on all types of floor surfaces and are required to wear 
appropriate attire for the work area and existing conditions.  May be required to work on 
evenings, weekends and holidays.  
            
Physical:  Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office 
equipment, including a computer and to visit various Town and meeting sites; vision to read 
printed materials and a computer screen; and hearing and speech to communicate in person, 

Agenda Item D-3



 

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER – Town of Discovery Bay CSD  Page 4 

 

before groups, and over the telephone.  This is primarily a sedentary office classification although 
standing and walking between work areas may be required, as well as standing and walking at 
various field sites.  Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter, and retrieve data using a 
computer keyboard, typewriter keyboard, or calculator and to operate standard office equipment.  
Positions in this classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push, and pull drawers 
open and closed to retrieve and file information.  Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, 
push, and pull materials and objects up to 25 pounds. Must be able to travel by automobile and to 
inspect/visit various District locations/facilities. 
 
Vision: See in the normal visual range with or without correction. 
 
Hearing: Hear in the normal audio range with or without correction. 
 
Note: All employees of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District are designated 
by state law to be “Disaster Service Workers.” In the event of a declared emergency or any 
undeclared emergency or natural disaster that threatens the life, health and/or safety of the 
public, employees may be assigned to assist rescue and relief workers. Such assignments may 
be in locations, during hours and performing work significantly different from the employees’ 
normal work assignments and may continue through the recovery phase of the emergency. 

Agenda Item D-3


	2019-05-09 Agenda Internal Operations Committee.pdf
	C-1 2019-02-28 DRAFT Minutes Special Internal Ops.pdf
	D-1 Internal Operations Committee Bylaws Rev 050919.pdf
	D-2 Personnel Manual Draft Revisions regarding Part Time Workers..pdf
	D-3-1 Projects Manager 2019 Job Descrip Draft.pdf
	D-3-2 Assistant General Manager 2019 Job Description DRAFT.pdf

